
If you would like help to understand this document, or would like it in 
another format or language, please call Paul James, Democratic Services 
Officer on 01432 260460 or e-mail pjames@herefordshire.gov.uk in 
advance of the meeting. 

 

 

 
 
AGENDA 
 
Environment Scrutiny 
Committee 

 

Date: Friday 26 March 2010 

Time: 9.30 am 

Place: The Council Chamber, Brockington, 35 Hafod Road, 
Hereford 

Notes: Please note the time, date and venue of the meeting. 

For any further information please contact: 

Paul James, Democratic Services Officer 
Tel: 01432 260460 
Email: pjames@herefordshire.gov.uk 

 
 

 
 



 

GUIDANCE ON DECLARING PERSONAL AND PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS AT MEETINGS 
 

The Council’s Members’ Code of Conduct requires Councillors to declare against an Agenda item(s) 
the nature of an interest and whether the interest is personal or prejudicial.  Councillors have to 
decide first whether or not they have a personal interest in the matter under discussion.  They will 
then have to decide whether that personal interest is also prejudicial. 

  
A personal interest is an interest that affects the Councillor more than most other people in the area.  
People in the area include those who live, work or have property in the area of the Council.  
Councillors will also have a personal interest if their partner, relative or a close friend, or an 
organisation that they or the member works for, is affected more than other people in the area.  If they 
do have a personal interest, they must declare it but can stay and take part and vote in the meeting.   

 

Whether an interest is prejudicial is a matter of judgement for each Councillor.  What Councillors have 
to do is ask themselves whether a member of the public – if he or she knew all the facts – would think 
that the Councillor’s interest was so important that their decision would be affected by it.  If a 
Councillor has a prejudicial interest then they must declare what that interest is.  A Councillor who 
has declared a prejudicial interest at a meeting may nevertheless be able to address that meeting, 
but only in circumstances where an ordinary member of the public would be also allowed to speak.  In 
such circumstances, the Councillor concerned will have the same opportunity to address the meeting 
and on the same terms.  However, a Councillor exercising their ability to speak in these 
circumstances must leave the meeting immediately after they have spoken. 

 

Agenda for the Meeting of the Environment 
Scrutiny Committee 
  
Membership  
  

Chairman Councillor RI Matthews 
Vice-Chairman Councillor PJ Watts 
  

Councillor CM Bartrum  
Councillor WLS Bowen  
Councillor DW Greenow  
Councillor JW Hope MBE  
Councillor MAF Hubbard  
Councillor TW Hunt  
Councillor PM Morgan  
Councillor A Seldon  
Councillor NL Vaughan  
  

 
  

 
 

  Non Voting 



 
HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL  26 MARCH 2010 

 

 

AGENDA 
 Pages 
  
   
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE     
   
 To receive apologies for absence.  
   
2. NAMED SUBSTITUTES (IF ANY)     
   
 To receive details any details of Members nominated to attend the meeting 

in place of a Member of the Committee. 
 

   
3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST     
   
 To receive any declarations of interest by Members in respect of items on 

the Agenda. 
 

   
4. SUGGESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC ON ISSUES FOR 

FUTURE SCRUTINY   
  

   
 To consider suggestions from members of the public on issues the 

Committee could scrutinise in the future. 
 

   
5. COUNCIL VEHICLE FLEET   1 - 6  
   
 To highlight the current position and outline a programme of work aimed at 

improving the management of the Council’s vehicle fleet. 
 

   
6. PROGRESS REPORT ON COMMUNITY PROTECTION TEAM   7 - 12  
   
 To update the Committee on the work of the Community Protection Team 

since the last Committee Report in September 2009. 
 

   
7. CONNECT 2 GREENWAY ROUTE OPTIONS   13 - 26  
   
 To provide an update to the Committee regarding Connect 2 Greenway 

preferred route key decision. 
 

   





PUBLIC INFORMATION 

HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL'S SCRUTINY COMMITTEES 

The Council has established Scrutiny Committees for Adult Social Care 
and Strategic Housing, Children’s Services, Community Services, 
Environment, and Health.  An Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
scrutinises corporate matters and co-ordinates the work of these 
Committees. 

The purpose of the Committees is to ensure the accountability and 
transparency of the Council's decision making process. 

The principal roles of Scrutiny Committees are to 
 
•  Help in developing Council policy 
 
• Probe, investigate, test the options and ask the difficult questions 

before and after decisions are taken 
 
• Look in more detail at areas of concern which may have been raised 

by the Cabinet itself, by other Councillors or by members of the public 
 
• "call in" decisions  - this is a statutory power which gives Scrutiny 

Committees the right to place a decision on hold pending further 
scrutiny. 

 
• Review performance of the Council 
 
• Conduct Best Value reviews  
 
• Undertake external scrutiny work engaging partners and the public  
 
Formal meetings of the Committees are held in public and information 
on your rights to attend meetings and access to information are set out 
overleaf 
 



PUBLIC INFORMATION 

Public Involvement at Scrutiny Committee Meetings 

You can contact Councillors and Officers at any time about Scrutiny 
Committee matters and issues which you would like the Scrutiny 
Committees to investigate.  

There are also two other ways in which you can directly contribute at 
Herefordshire Council’s Scrutiny Committee meetings. 

1. Identifying Areas for Scrutiny 

At the meeting the Chairman will ask the members of the public present if 
they have any issues which they would like the Scrutiny Committee to 
investigate, however, there will be no discussion of the issue at the time 
when the matter is raised.  Councillors will research the issue and consider 
whether it should form part of the Committee’s work programme when 
compared with other competing priorities. 

Please note that the Committees can only scrutinise items which fall within 
their specific remit (see below).  If a matter is raised which falls within the 
remit of another Scrutiny Committee then it will be noted and passed on to 
the relevant Chairman for their consideration.   

2. Questions from Members of the Public for Consideration at 
Scrutiny Committee Meetings and Participation at Meetings 

You can submit a question for consideration at a Scrutiny Committee 
meeting so long as the question you are asking is directly related to an item 
listed on the agenda.  If you have a question you would like to ask then 
please submit it no later than two working days before the meeting to 
the Committee Officer.  This will help to ensure that an answer can be 
provided at the meeting.  Contact details for the Committee Officer can be 
found on the front page of this agenda.   

Generally, members of the public will also be able to contribute to the 
discussion at the meeting.  This will be at the Chairman’s discretion.   

(Please note that the Scrutiny Committees are not able to discuss 
questions relating to personal or confidential issues.) 



 
Remits of Herefordshire Council’s Scrutiny Committees 
 
Adult Social Care and Strategic Housing 
 
Statutory functions for adult social services including: 
Learning Disabilities 
Strategic Housing 
Supporting People 
Public Health 
 
Children’s Services 
 
Provision of services relating to the well-being of children including 
education, health and social care. 
 
Community Services Scrutiny Committee 
 
Libraries 
Cultural Services including heritage and tourism 
Leisure Services 
Parks and Countryside 
Community Safety 
Economic Development 
Youth Services 
 
Health 
 
Planning, provision and operation of health services affecting the area 
Health Improvement 
Services provided by the NHS 
 
Environment 
 
Environmental Issues 
Highways and Transportation 
 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
Corporate Strategy and Finance 
Resources  
Corporate and Customer Services 
Human Resources 
 

 



The Public’s Rights to Information and Attendance at 
Meetings  
 
YOU HAVE A RIGHT TO: - 
 
 
• Attend all Council, Cabinet, Committee and Sub-Committee meetings unless the 

business to be transacted would disclose ‘confidential’ or ‘exempt’ information. 

• Inspect agenda and public reports at least five clear days before the date of the 
meeting. 

• Inspect minutes of the Council and all Committees and Sub-Committees and written 
statements of decisions taken by the Cabinet or individual Cabinet Members for up to 
six years following a meeting. 

• Inspect background papers used in the preparation of public reports for a period of up 
to four years from the date of the meeting.  (A list of the background papers to a 
report is given at the end of each report).  A background paper is a document on 
which the officer has relied in writing the report and which otherwise is not available 
to the public. 

• Access to a public Register stating the names, addresses and wards of all 
Councillors with details of the membership of Cabinet and of all Committees and 
Sub-Committees. 

• Have a reasonable number of copies of agenda and reports (relating to items to be 
considered in public) made available to the public attending meetings of the Council, 
Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees. 

• Have access to a list specifying those powers on which the Council have delegated 
decision making to their officers identifying the officers concerned by title. 

• Copy any of the documents mentioned above to which you have a right of access, 
subject to a reasonable charge (20p per sheet subject to a maximum of £5.00 per 
agenda plus a nominal fee of £1.50 for postage). 

• Access to this summary of your rights as members of the public to attend meetings of 
the Council, Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees and to inspect and copy 
documents. 

 

 

 



 

Please Note: 

Agenda and individual reports can be made available in large 
print.  Please contact the officer named on the front cover of this 
agenda in advance of the meeting who will be pleased to deal 
with your request. 

The Council Chamber where the meeting will be held is accessible for 
visitors in wheelchairs, for whom toilets are also available. 

A public telephone is available in the reception area. 
 
Public Transport Links 
 
 
• Public transport access can be gained to Brockington via the service runs 

approximately every half hour from the ‘Hopper’ bus station at the Tesco store in 
Bewell Street (next to the roundabout junction of Blueschool Street / Victoria Street / 
Edgar Street). 

• The nearest bus stop to Brockington is located in Old Eign Hill near to its junction 
with Hafod Road.  The return journey can be made from the same bus stop. 

 
 
 
 
 
If you have any questions about this agenda, how the Council works or would like more 
information or wish to exercise your rights to access the information described above, 
you may do so either by telephoning the officer named on the front cover of this agenda 
or by visiting in person during office hours (8.45 a.m. - 5.00 p.m. Monday - Thursday 
and 8.45 a.m. - 4.45 p.m. Friday) at the Council Offices, Brockington, 35 Hafod Road, 
Hereford. 

 

 

 

 

 
Where possible this agenda is printed on paper made from 100% Post-Consumer waste. De-
inked without bleaching and free from optical brightening agents (OBA). Awarded the 
Nordic Swan for low emissions during production and the Blue Angel environmental label. 

 



 

HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL 
 
 

BROCKINGTON, 35 HAFOD ROAD, HEREFORD. 
 
 
 

FIRE AND EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 
 
 

 

In the event of a fire or emergency the alarm bell will ring 
continuously. 

You should vacate the building in an orderly manner through the 
nearest available fire exit. 

You should then proceed to Assembly Point J which is located at 
the southern entrance to the car park.  A check will be undertaken 
to ensure that those recorded as present have vacated the 
building following which further instructions will be given. 

Please do not allow any items of clothing, etc. to obstruct any of 
the exits. 

Do not delay your vacation of the building by stopping or returning 
to collect coats or other personal belongings. 
 



 

 
Further information on the subject of this report is available from 

Richard Ball, Assistant Director Environment and Culture, 01432 260965  

  

MEETING: ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

DATE: 26TH MARCH 2010 

TITLE OF REPORT: COUNCIL VEHICLE FLEET 

REPORT BY:  ASSISTANT DIRECTOR ENVIRONMENT AND CULTURE 

 

Wards Affected 

County-wide  

Purpose 

To highlight the current position and outline a programme of work aimed at improving the 
management of the council’s vehicle fleet. 

Recommendation 

 THAT subject to any comments the Committee may wish to make, the report be noted. 

Key Points Summary 

• A total of 204 vehicles have been notified to the Council’s Corporate Risk Manager by March 
2010 as forming the Council’s vehicle fleet.   

• As previously reported, a Green Fleet Review has been undertaken that concluded that there 
are opportunities for achieving annual savings in the region of 1,288 tonnes of carbon (16%) 
and £180,000 from improved fleet management and operation. 

• Fleet administration is done within individual directorates. The council currently has no 
overarching fleet management strategy. Although there are areas of good practice, such as the 
management of pool cars, overall asset management is variable and gives little opportunity for 
shared use, joint procurement and use of IT to help manage mileage and fuel costs. 

• The Director of Resources, supported by the Assistant Director Environment and Culture, will 
lead a programme of work aimed at identifying the best way to improve the council’s fleet asset 
management and it’s subsequent implementation. The programme has identified the high level 
options for improvement and a set of criteria that will be used to decide between the options, 
upon which Members views are invited. 

Introduction and Background 

1 The committee at their meeting on 23rd September 2009 asked that “a report be made to 
the next meeting on the findings by the Energy Saving Trust into the Council’s vehicle 
fleet, detailing in particular the number of vehicles owned and maintained by the Council, 
specifically detailing vehicle age and emissions.” 

2 The report delivered on 23rd November 2009 gave details of the council’s fleet, based on 

AGENDA ITEM 5

1



the best available information at that time, together with a summary of the 
recommendations from the Green Fleet Review carried out by the Energy Saving Trust in 
August 2009. It also highlighted a number of issues with the council’s fleet asset 
management.  

Key Considerations 

3 Since the last report, details of the Council’s fleet have been further examined to provide 
an up to date position.   The following table identifies those vehicles notified to the 
Corporate Risk Manager by March 2010.  Whilst this provides the latest position, a 
detailed audit of all vehicles will be undertaken as part of the forthcoming programme of 
work to establish a robust register of vehicles upon which to base future management 
arrangements.  

4 Make up of Council fleet March 2010  

 Number of vehicles Vehicle Age Range  Range of emissions 
(gms CO2/km) 

Cars 58 1-10 years 104 – 200 

Minibus 69 6 months – 14 years N/A* 

Vans 43 6 months – 18 years N/A 

4x4 14 3 -10 years N/A 

Specialist 20 2 -17 years N/A 

Total 204   

* Information on emissions from these vehicles is not available on the DVLA website or collected 
by service managers.  

5 In addition to making recommendations to increase fleet efficiency, the Green Fleet 
Review highlighted a number of issues with the way the council manages its fleet assets. 
The review showed that there is no clear strategy for fleet management nor is there any 
central guidance and oversight on selection, operation and disposal of council owned 
vehicles. Vehicles tend to be procured, operated and maintained locally by the teams that 
require them. 

6 This situation makes it more difficult to confirm that vehicles are maintained appropriately, 
are fit for purpose and that all drivers are licensed and trained to use the vehicles that they 
operate. While we are aware of good practice in some areas, for example in the way that 
pool cars are managed, it would be difficult to confirm that procedures across the council 
are robust. 

7 The lack of a comprehensive database of all fleet assets and information on their 
allocation and usage also makes it difficult to put in place appropriate arrangements to 
manage fleet performance and ensure efficient use of the assets.  

8 It is clear that there would be benefits from putting in place more robust fleet management 
arrangements. These include the council’s responsibility to ensure that all vehicles, 
including those owned by employees (and used in the course of their work), are fit for 
purpose, roadworthy and correctly insured; the need to understand the cost of running the 
fleet to ensure that the Council secures value for money; the need for a comprehensive 

2



central fleet asset database; the need to influence staff travel habits. This would improve 
the Council’s ability to manage risk, reduce cost and reduce CO2 emissions. 

Action Plan 

9 Building upon the current fleet information, an audit will be carried out to generate a 
comprehensive register of all council owned and operated vehicles.  This will then be 
supported by the development of a clear strategy for managing the register in future and 
the operation of the fleet.  

10 In developing the strategy consideration will be given to a number of possible approaches 
including: managing the fleet as now but maintaining a comprehensive asset register and 
fleet management strategy; putting in place internal centralised fleet management; 
outsourcing via procurement or using our strategic partnership. The solution may include a 
blend of these approaches. 

Approach 5: 
Pragmatically 
choose approach 
for specific parts of 
the fleet based on 
need and 
opportunity

Approach 1: As now (do nothing)

Approach 2: Internal fleet management 
Central policies / local ownership (do minimum)

Approach 3: Internal centralised fleet management

Approach 4: Outsource via procurement or using 
strategic partnership

 

11 With the exception of the ‘do nothing’ option (which is not acceptable), all of these 
approaches imply changes to policies and procedures in all Directorates that use vehicles. 
The figure below shows the directorates and organisations affected and the proportion of 
the current fleet that they operate. Any opportunities for joint working with partners will be 
considered as part of the initial review. 

 

3



 

12 The Wales Audit Office’s Fleet Management Checklist (June 2008) has been used to 
develop a set of criteria which will be used to assess the chosen approach to ensure that it 
is in line with best practice:  
 

Suggested criteria for new approachSuggested criteria for new approach

• Reduce corporate risk: we need to be able 
to demonstrate that we follow best practice 
across the organisation

• Put in place effective centralised asset 
management across the organisation to 
ensure that we have a fleet that is value for 
money and fit for purpose

• Allow us to make efficient use of fleet 
assets flexibly across the organisation

• Allow us to implement the recommendations 
in the Green Fleet Review to take advantage 
of both the carbon footprint reductions and 
financial savings

• Any approach must be capable of being 
implemented 

• Reduce corporate risk: we need to be able 
to demonstrate that we follow best practice 
across the organisation

• Put in place effective centralised asset 
management across the organisation to 
ensure that we have a fleet that is value for 
money and fit for purpose

• Allow us to make efficient use of fleet 
assets flexibly across the organisation

• Allow us to implement the recommendations 
in the Green Fleet Review to take advantage 
of both the carbon footprint reductions and 
financial savings

• Any approach must be capable of being 
implemented 

 

13 Members’ views are invited on the above criteria.  

14  The project will initially analyse the options for future fleet management against the above 
criteria.  In addition, it will explore opportunities for joint management of vehicles across 
public services.  This will enable the selection of preferred option, for which a Fleet 
Management Strategy will be developed.  This will be followed by the implementation of 
the preferred option. 

15 Given the urgent need to improve fleet management, the first stage of the project, to 
confirm the preferred option, will be complete by May 2010. A detailed implementation 
plan will also be developed to deliver this preferred option as quickly as possible. 

Conclusion 

16 The issues raised by the Environment Scrutiny Committee in relation to the current 
approach to fleet management have highlighted the need to improve current practice.  The 
Director of Resources has recognised that significant improvements are needed to reduce 
the Council’s exposure to risk and ensure value for money is being achieved.  The 
programme of work identified above aims to deliver improvements to fleet management 
across the Council and respond to Members concerns. 

 
Financial Implications 

There are no financial implications of this project in the short term. However, improved fleet 
management including fleet performance management offers the potential for efficiency savings and 
environmental benefits. 

4



Legal Implications 

None as a result of this report.  

Risk Management  

Financial Risks – An improved approach to fleet management has the potential to deliver savings for 
example, in relation to fuel purchase, servicing of vehicles, lease and short term hire. 

Climate change – The council has set itself a target of reducing its own carbon emissions by 20% by 
2020 - equivalent to 1.25% a year.  The council is also the lead body for the Local Area Agreement 
target to reduce county carbon emissions by 13.1% over 3 years and thus have a community 
leadership role – and concomitant reputational risk if we are seen not to be actively managing our 
own carbon emissions.  

Lack of robust fleet management has the potential to expose the council to risks associated with 
claims against the council, health and safety and road safety. 

Background Papers 

EST Green Fleet review 2009 

Wales Audit Office’s Fleet Management Checklist (June 2008) 

5



6



 

 
Further information on the subject of this report is available from 

Shane Hancock, Acting Regulatory Services Manager on (01432) 261752 
  

Scrutiny report on CPT – March 2010  

MEETING: ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

DATE: 26 MARCH 2010 

TITLE OF REPORT: PROGRESS REPORT ON COMMUNITY 
PROTECTION TEAM 

REPORT BY:  ACTING HEAD OF ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH & 
TRADING STANDARDS 

 

CLASSIFICATION: Open  

Wards Affected 

County-wide 

Purpose 

To update the Committee on the work of the Community Protection Team since the last Committee 
Report in September 2009. 

Recommendation(s) 

 THAT subject to any comments the Committee may wish to make the contents of this 
report be noted. 

Introduction and Background 

1 On 14 September 2009 this Committee noted a report on the establishment of the Community 
Protection Team. 

2 The Committee agreed that an update on the work of the team should be provided after six 
months. This report provides that update.  

Key Considerations 

3 The Community Protection Team reached its full establishment of a Team Leader, 5 
enforcement officers and 2 Dog Wardens on 4 January 2010.  

4 The team’s main areas of business are fly-tipping, abandoned vehicles, littering, graffiti, and 
dog related issues (stray dogs and dog fouling). There have been a number of 
developments/work-streams in these areas over the last six months aimed at making the 
team’s activities as effective as possible 

5 In general terms the work-load of the team has increased and continues to do so as its 
existence becomes more widely known.  

AGENDA ITEM 6

7



6 On 28 September 2009 the Integrated Environment & Regeneration System went ‘live’ 
allowing the recording of and reporting on service requests far easier. Since that date, to 28 
February 2010 (5 months), the team has dealt with 1387 service requests, as shown in the 
table below. 

Service request category Number of 
reports actioned 

Fly-tipping  548 

Abandoned vehicles 122 

Litter 39 

Fly-posting 18 

Graffiti 14 

Dog related issues 500 

Miscellaneous issues 146 

Total 1387 

     

7  Dealing with such service requests involves initial contact with the complainant, investigation 
and/or targeted patrolling depending upon the report (both can be protracted), file building and 
keeping the complainant updated. As such a particular service request may be resolved very 
quickly, i.e. the same day, or may become an inquiry/investigation that takes place over a 
number of weeks. 

 Fly-tipping 

8 Fly-tipping is subject to a national indicator, NI 196, and as such is a key area focussed upon. 
NI 196 measures a local authority’s performance based on a combination of calculating its 
year on year change in total incidents of fly-tipping dealt with, compared with its year on year 
change in enforcement actions taken against fly-tipping. In 2008/09 Herefordshire was graded 
as 2 (effective).  

9 Year to date (April to February) 2009/10 the total number of reported incidents of fly-tipping is 
708. This compares with 793 in the same period in 2008/09, an 11% reduction. Whilst this 
reduction is good news a reduction in itself will not raise the grading to 1 (very effective). The 
reduction needs to be complemented by an increased number of enforcement actions, 
meaning prosecutions, cautions, warnings, duty of care inspections, and stop checks.  

10 This enforcement activity is now happening through the processes that have been put place 
over the last six months, albeit they may not be sufficient to achieve a ‘very effective’ grading 
for 2009/10. A full year of enforcement activity under the principles now established is likely to 
achieve a grading of 1 in 2010/11. 

 

11 Between April and August 2009, the time during which the team was becoming established 
and working practices were being developed, there was no significant enforcement activity. In 

8



the last six months (September to February) the following has been achieved: 

a. every reported incident of fly-tipping is investigated to the extent that is practicable, and 
timely action is taken to remove the fly-tipped waste; 

b. 4 prosecutions and convictions (detailed below under ‘successes’); 

c. 1 formal caution administered; 

d. 2 formal written warnings; 

e. 82 warning/advisory letters issued; 

f. 2 fixed penalty notices issued; 

g. 39 duty of care inspections carried out; 

h. 4 stop search operations carried out with VOSA; 

i. 15 ongoing investigations with named suspects. 

12 With regards to the duty of care inspections the team works very closely with waste 
management to ensure that inspections are targeted. 

13 The team has just started to carry out joint patrols and conduct joint stop and search 
operations with the Vehicle and Operator Services Agency (VOSA). In the most recent 
operation 42 vehicles suspected of carrying waste were stopped and checked to ensure they 
had the appropriate documentation. 

Abandoned vehicles   

14 The team dealt with 122 reports of an abandoned vehicle between October and February.  
After investigation many of these proved not to be abandoned, others were removed following 
intervention with the owner and 8 were removed as abandoned vehicles. 

Litter 

15 Litter is a significant issue, primarily identified through PACT meetings and surveys, and other 
meetings. The team works closely with Amey to ensure reported litter accumulations are 
removed in a timely way, and has conducted targeted patrols in a number of areas that have 
been identified as hot spots, for example Cathedral Close, Churchill Gardens, and areas 
around the Colleges. Ten Fixed Penalty Notices have been issued for dropping litter; not a 
high number, but enforcement is difficult relying as it does on an enforcement officer seeing 
someone drop and leave litter. 

16  Notwithstanding this, patrols specifically targeting litter issues have been introduced each 
Saturday on a rotational basis across Hereford, the market towns and other villages as 
required.  Littering is also high on the agenda of officers conducting patrols at other times. 

Graffiti 

17 Whilst the police remain the lead investigatory agency for graffiti the Community Protection 
Team is involved with the environmental aspects of this, and is particularly conscious of the 
detrimental impact it can have on areas, the potential to lead to other types of anti-social 
behaviour, and the negative impact on public perceptions of safety. 

9



18 With this in mind the team was instrumental in the TAAG (Targeted Action Against Graffiti) 
campaign that ran across the county between 22 February and 5 March. This involved working 
with Amey, Safer Herefordshire and the police. The two weeks of the campaign involved a 
clean-up of the worst affected areas, media coverage, and on-street surveys. The ongoing 
part of the campaign, post 5 March, will be to monitor those areas, ensure timely action on any 
fresh graffiti, conduct follow-up surveys to measure satisfaction, and ongoing activity to identify 
and clean other locations that have graffiti. 

Dog related issues    

19 The two dog wardens who are a part of the team dealt with 228 stray dog reports in the five 
months October to February. This involved collecting dogs found as strays, taking them to 
council kennels, and in respect of those where the owner was identified picking the dog up 
from the kennels and returning it to the owner. This has unfortunately meant that they have 
had very little time to respond to reports of dog fouling, an issue frequently raised at PACT and 
other meetings, or to carry out proactive work around responsible dog ownership. That said 
the Dog Wardens, supported by other members of the team, do carry out targeted patrols 
whenever possible. Five Fixed Penalty Notices have been issued for dog fouling.   

20 With effect from 1 March a new contract and some agreed changes to working practices has 
meant that most of the stray dog service is now contracted out releasing the time of the Dog 
Wardens to carry out work around enforcement and education. This is particularly welcome as 
the work on Dog Control Orders is close to being finalised. Dog Control Orders will remove the 
current issues that make enforcement difficult, specifically the issues in proving specific areas 
of land have been designated for the purposes of the Dogs (Fouling of Land Act) 1996.   

Other areas of work 

21 Working with the community and partners on various issues is important and the team has 
been involved in a number of events to promote its work, for example - 

• PACT meetings - during the last two rounds of meetings a member of the team has given a 
presentation on its work. A member of the team will be in attendance at all future PACT 
meetings to deal with issues raised. Working alongside partners a member of the team also 
attends as many open PACT meetings as is possible; 

•  ‘Not in my Neighbourhood’ week of action (October 2009) - working with the other council 
departments, the Police, the Fire Service, Amey and Safer Herefordshire on a number of key 
issues across the County, for example an environmental clean-up day in Bromyard, and 
information events in Ledbury and Hereford; 

• Community Safety Roadshow, High Town on 11 November 2009; 

• joint late night shopping patrols with the police in the run up to Christmas. 

Prosecutions 

22 The team has secured four successful prosecutions, as follows: 

a. 25/09/09 – James ROGERS convicted at Herefordshire Magistrates Court of an 
offence under the Environmental Protection Act 1990. Fined £1,000 plus £470.92 
costs. 

b. 23/10/09 – Neil OSEMAN convicted at Herefordshire Magistrates Court of an offence 
under the Environmental Protection Act 1990. Fined £105.00, plus £200.00 costs. 

10



c. 20/11/09 – John BUCKLEY sentenced at Crown Court following conviction by 
Herefordshire Magistrates for an offence under the Environmental protection Act 1990. 
Fined £985.00, with a £15.00 surcharge, plus £1,000 costs. 

d. 22/01/10 – Martin CAMPBELL convicted at Herefordshire Magistrates Court of an 
offence under the Environmental Protection Act 1990. Fined £350.00, with £425.70 
costs, plus £135.25 compensation. 

Future plans 

23 During the next twelve months the team will continue to seek to respond to reported incidents 
of environmental anti-social behaviour in a customer focused way, with the intention of making 
a difference to local communities in a way that positively contributes to feelings of well-being 
and satisfaction. 

24 Specifically the team will strive to achieve a grade 1 rating for the authority in respect of NI 
196. 

25 It will also seek to deliver focused projects/initiatives in respect of its key areas of business. So 
in each quarter of 2010/11, working with partners, there will be an initiative on either fly-
tipping, littering, dog related issues, or graffiti, each initiative capturing aspects of education, 
prevention and enforcement. Each of these will also seek to contribute to the various National 
Indicators that measure public perceptions and satisfaction with the way the council (and 
police as appropriate) deal with anti-social behaviour. 

26 In terms of education the team has already committed its support to a number of events, for 
example, the Safer Herefordshire Crucial Crew day, the ‘Dying to Drive’ event, and a 
‘Responsible Dog Owners Course. The team will also be exploring how best to take its 
message into schools. 

27 Whilst Civil Enforcement Officers (CEO’s) have a very specific role in respect of on-street and 
off-street parking regulation they are also in a position to contribute to the wider community 
safety agenda. Each day there are possibly a dozen uniformed CEO’s on the streets of 
Herefordshire. As ‘eyes and ears’ they are already in a position to signpost issues internally or 
to partners and this does happen. Taking this a stage further would enable them to deal with 
issues they come across whilst on patrol, for example littering and dog-fouling. This has 
significant potential to have a positive impact on public perceptions around how the council 
deals with these aspects of anti-social behaviour, and is of course the rationale for structuring 
CEO’s alongside the Community Protection Team. They have already engaged in some joint 
patrols and it is not so hard to imagine how as a one large enforcement team they could do 
even more.  Increasingly local authorities are testing the boundaries to maximise the use of 
this valuable resource. Whilst this is not without challenges it is an area for further 
consideration and one that we will be exploring during the forthcoming year. 

Community Impact 

Information/update report only - no community impact considerations. 

Financial Implications 

Information/update report only - no financial implications. 

Legal Implications 

Information/update report only - no legal implications. 

11



Risk Management 

Information/update report only - no risks identified. 

Consultees 

 Not applicable.  

Appendices 

None. 

Background Papers 

None identified. 

 

12



 

 
 

 

 

 

MEETING: ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

DATE: 26 MARCH 2010 

TITLE OF REPORT: CONNECT 2 GREENWAY ROUTE 
OPTIONS 

PORTFOLIO AREA:  HIGHWAYS & TRANSPORTATION  

      Wards Affected 

Central, Hollington, St Martins and Hinton & Tupsley 

Purpose 

To provide an update to the Committee regarding Connect 2 Greenway preferred route 
key decision (11 March 2010) 
 
RECOMMENDATION 

THAT Members note the contents of this report. 

  Background 

1. The Connect 2 cycle scheme seeks to link Hereford City, via Rotherwas to Holme 
Lacy.  The scheme forms part of a national initiative supported by Sustrans with 
funding through lottery grants.  The scheme has been in development for a number 
of years and following issues identified during the design stage a report has recently 
been prepared and considered by the Cabinet Member for Highways and 
Transportation to determine the way forward to deliver the scheme.  This report is 
intended to inform the committee of the issues surrounding this review of the scheme 
and the decision taken. 

2. Additional options were considered for the delivery of the Connect2 scheme due to 
additional risks and constraints associated with the previously agreed route.  A new 
Preferred Route has been considered in detail and has been accepted by the 
Cabinet Member in his recent decision. 

3. The Connect 2 Route Options Cabinet Member Report dated 3 March 2010, copy 
attached as Appendix 1 to this report, recommended that the preferred route, subject 
to any minor amendments considered necessary by the Director of Regeneration, 
should be progressed and a planning application submitted accordingly and the 
increased cost of £845,000 be funded from Growth Point and Local Transport Plan 
capital budgets.  

AGENDA ITEM 7

13



 

4. Whilst the new preferred route does have associated cost implications, it is 
considered that the route has a range of benefits compared to the original route 
including being more attractive to users and having a lower level of risk to delivery.  
Full details of the comparison of the route options, the cost implications and risks are 
included within the Cabinet Member report attached. 

5. On 11 March 2010 the Cabinet Member took the key decision to progress the 
preferred route and fund the increased costs from Growth Point funding (Ref 
No:2010.H&T.002KEY). This decision became effective on 17 March 2010.  Affected 
land owners are now being contacted in advance of the publication of the new 
preferred route.  In this context Appendix A to the Cabinet Members report was 
marked Not For Publication under Schedule 12A of the Local Government (Access to 
information) Act 1985 due to information relating to the financial or business affairs of 
any particular person (including the authority holding that information). 

Financial Implications 

Details are contained within the attached cabinet member report.  
Risk Management 

Details are contained within the attached cabinet member report.  
 

Appendices 

Appendix 1: Connect 2 Route Options: Report to Cabinet Member of Highways and 
Transportation (3 March 2010) 

Background Papers 

None 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Mairead Lane, Acting Construction Manager 01432 260944 

 

14



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mairead Lane, Acting Construction Manager 
Tel: 01432 260944 

 27 August 2009 

    CONNECT2 ROUTE OPTIONS      Appendix1 

REPORT BY DIRECTOR OF ENVIRONMENT AND CULTURE AND DIRECTOR OF 
REGENERATION 

REPORT TO CABINET MEMBER OF HIGHWAYS AND TRANSPORTATION: 3 MARCH 2010 
DATE REPORT CONSIDERED AND DECIDED BY CABINET MEMBER: 11 MARCH 2010 
DATE DECISION CAN BE IMPLEMENTED: 17 MARCH 2010 

CLASSIFICATION: Exempt - Appendix A - not for publication due to information relating to 
the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that 
information). 
 

Wards Affected 

Central, Hollington, St Martins and Hinton, Tupsley. 

Purpose 

To note the route options for the proposed Connect2 Greenway scheme and endorse the Preferred 
Route to be progressed to the submission of a planning application. 

Key Decision  

This is a Key Decision because it is likely to result in the Council incurring expenditure which is, or the 
making of savings which are, significant having regard to the Council’s budget for the service or 
function to which the decision relates; 

and 

this is a Key Decision because it is likely to be significant in terms of its effect on communities living 
or working in an area comprising one or more wards in the County. 

Recommendations 

 THAT: 

 (a) the preferred route subject to any minor amendments considered 
necessary by the Director of Regeneration should be progressed and a 
planning application submitted accordingly and; 

 (b) the increased cost of £845,000 be funded from Growth Point and Local 
Transport Plan capital budgets. 

Key Points Summary 

• Additional options have been considered for the delivery of the Connect2 scheme due to 
additional risks and constraints associated with the current agreed route.  A Preferred Route 
has been considered in detail. 

15



• The Preferred Route will be a better quality route (more direct and coherent) which is more 
likely to attract additional commuter and leisure use. 

• Reduced design, construction, environmental and land constraints will result in a lower risk 
scheme overall. 

• If the council wished the route to become a highway, the council have the ability to invoke 
Compulsory Purchase Order (CPO) powers to acquire land for highway purposes over the 
Preferred Route but a CPO would be more difficult in this regard if the current agreed route is 
progressed, given statutory undertaker (Welsh Water) land is included (as further detailed in 
this report) It should be noted that, if the recommendations in this report are approved, a 
further report will follow to request a CPO for highway purposes. 

• The Preferred Route is likely to have a reduced environmental impact on the River Wye. 

• Whilst additional funding of £845,000 is required to pursue the Preferred Route, in continuing 
with the current agreed route, £461,850 additional funding will be required for a less attractive 
route. There is a difference in cost of £382,000 between delivery of the Current Route and 
Preferred Route.  These figures include ‘worst case scenario costs’ for land acquisition. 

• It is recommended that the additional cost of this scheme be funded by a reallocation of 
resources from Growth Point funding and Local Transport Plan capital budgets. 

Alternative Options 

1 OPTION 1 (progress current agreed route – Appendix A, Drawing No. 551369/I/014)  
- The current approved route along Outfall Works Road, utilising the Welsh Water bridge 

and existing railway underpass has been compared with the Preferred Route in detail 
within the various sections of this cabinet report. 

Whilst this option is viable in broad terms, it is recommended that the Preferred Route is 
progressed for the reasons described in this report and that this alternative is not pursued. 

2 OPTION 2 (do minimum scenario)  
- Terminate the Connect 2 scheme but provide improved pedestrian and cycling facilities on 

Holme Lacy Road. 

Advantages o Reduced capital cost 

16



Disadvantages o Likely loss of Connect2 Status and Big Lottery Funding 

o Loss of potential Sustrans ‘Links to Schools’ funding (Hereford 
would be the first known scheme nationally to withdraw from the 
£50m Big Lottery ‘Peoples Millions’ Award Programme). 

o Some scheme costs to date would be abortive. 

o Further legal input to terminate or surrender Memorandum of 
Understanding and any implications thereto. 

o Adverse reaction from steering group and wider public  

o No advantage to commuters north of the river accessing the estate.  
Would not achieve desired car trip reduction and would compromise 
the negotiations with the Highways Agency on the development of 
the estate. 

o No provision of a leisure route or safe route to schools and colleges 
at Holme Lacy. 

It is recommended that this option is not pursued.  It should be noted that plans are already in 
place to introduce safety, pedestrian and cycling improvements along Holme Lacy Road as 
part of the Local Transport Plan programme. 

 

3 OPTION 3 (do nothing further scenario)  
- Terminate the Connect 2 scheme. 

 
Advantages o No further capital cost. 

Disadvantages o Loss of Connect2 Status and Big Lottery Funding 

o Loss of potential Sustrans ‘Links to Schools’ funding (Hereford 
would be the first known scheme nationally to withdraw from the 
£50m Big Lottery ‘Peoples Millions’ Award Programme). 

o Scheme costs to date would be abortive. 

o Further legal input to terminate or surrender Memorandum of 
Understanding and any implications thereto. 

o Adverse reaction from steering group and wider public  

o No advantage to any commuters accessing the estate.  Would not 
achieve any car trip reduction and would compromise the 
negotiations with the Highways Agency on the development of the 
estate. 

o No provision of a leisure route or safe route to schools and colleges 
at Holme Lacy. 

17



It is recommended that this option is not pursued. 

Reasons for Recommendation of ‘Preferred Route’ 

4 OPTION 4 (new river crossing & change of alignment - Appendix A, Drawing No 551369/I/015) 
- Recommended for the following reasons: 

a. It will provide a better quality route from the City Centre to the Rotherwas Industrial 
Estate and Holme Lacy, avoiding the end user safety risks associated with Outfall 
Works Road.  The alignment of the Preferred Route follows a more favourable desire 
line and will avoid steep gradients associated with the current agreed route. It is a 
more direct and coherent route which are key considerations when planning cycle 
routes. The Preferred Route is unlikely to flood whereas the current agreed route will 
flood on an annual basis.  These factors will encourage its use as a commuter and 
leisure route reducing city centre congestion, facilitating further development at 
Rotherwas and promoting health and wellbeing. 

b. The risks associated with constructing the Preferred Route will be reduced adjacent to 
the River Wye. Construction of the preferred route will avoid the risks associated with 
working adjacent to the railway and constraints associated with the underpass.  The 
overall construction time associated with constructing the Preferred Route will be 
reduced. 

c. It will secure a new purpose built bridge structure with longer lifespan within the full 
ownership of the Council.  A new bridge would avoid the complex and problematic 
issues relating to retrofitting ramps and parapets to an existing structure not originally 
designed for these purposes.  A bespoke design for a new bridge could also be seen 
as an exemplary development by the Council. 

d. The delivery of the Preferred Route will benefit from the Councils ability to invoke CPO 
powers to acquire the land needed for the scheme for highway purposes. If the council 
wished the route to become a highway, the council would have the ability to invoke 
CPO powers to acquire land for highway purposes over the Preferred Route. However, 
a CPO would be more difficult if the current agreed route is progressed as a statutory 
undertaker (in this case Welsh Water) is likely to object and, given this, the order 
would have to go through the “Certification Procedure” (see para 15 below). 

e. Both the Current Approved Route and the Preferred Route are subject to 
Environmental Impact Assessment due to the designation of the River Wye and require 
an Environmental Statement to support any planning application.  The Preferred Route 
requires less site clearance and riverbank works minimising the impact of the scheme.  
The current agreed route may be at risk during the planning process as a lower impact 
alternative exists. 

Introduction and Background 

5 A feasibility report was completed in 2007 which assessed route options for the Connect2 
scheme.  This included a review of the constraints and scheme costs for two options involving 
new bridges and a third option to utilise the existing Welsh Water Bridge. 

6 The option to use the Welsh Water bridge was selected on the grounds of cost and forms the 
current approved route.  This route featured in the submission for funding although a new 
bridge was recognised as being along a more favourable desire line. 

7 A memorandum of understanding (MOU) has been signed with Sustrans to secure funding 
from Big Lottery toward the design and construction of the current approved route. 

18



Key Considerations 

8 The current approved route incorporates Outfall Works Road (public highway leading to the 
sewage treatment site).  This road is narrow with poor forward visibility and is frequently used 
by heavy goods vehicles.  This element is likely to raise concerns at safety audit and 
necessitate the Council to confirm exceptions to the Auditor’s recommendations to avoid this 
route altogether.  The Preferred Route would avoid this conflict via the construction of a 
shared footway/cycleway on Eign Road to the new bridge site. 

9 The current approved route would incorporate two 100m long ramp structures and 
furthermore, at the nearby railway Underpass, a 1 in 12 gradient to accommodate the path 
within a very limited location.  A better alignment along a more favourable desire line, with no 
steep gradients and no flood risk would be possible using the Preferred Route.   

10 The current approved route would be expected to flood approximately once a year whereas 
the Preferred Route would be flood free up to a 1 in 100 year flood event. 

11 The construction of either route option has significant constraints however, through the 
adoption of the Preferred Route, some of those associated with the Current Route could be 
mitigated or reduced.  These include: 

a. Site access for construction immediately adjacent to the river.  Extensive site 
clearance, haul routes, and the diversion of high voltage overhead cables would be 
required if the current agreed route is progressed.  In addition, construction material 
and plant to the east side of the river may need to be lifted over the railway line under 
overnight possessions which would introduce significant delay and cost to the scheme. 

b. A high risk of inundation of the construction site from the river disrupting and causing 
hazards to construction operations. 

c. Extensive requirements to work at height over the river during early inspection and 
construction. 

d. Working adjacent to and underneath the live railway during the construction of the 
underpass. 

12 The current agreed route utilises an existing structure of unknown structural integrity and 
residual lifespan.  The existing bridge would remain in the ownership of Welsh Water and 
should security concerns be realised, permission to use the structure may be withdrawn.  A 
new bridge would be fully within the ownership of the council and have a lifespan of at least 
120 years.  

13 The existing bridge was not designed for public access and would require significant works to 
the parapets and extra security for the Welsh Water works.  The proof of the original 1970s 
design and construction before public use is allowed will require costly inspections and design 
checks and may result in the bridge being unable to be approved for use.  This resource could 
be used to progress the design of a new structure. 

14 Current liaison with Network Rail suggests that that use of the railway underpass may be 
rejected altogether and, if allowed through negotiation, a three month termination clause will 
be included in the agreement to allow the structure to be filled in at any time. 

15 The delivery of the Preferred Route will benefit from the Councils ability to invoke CPO powers 
to acquire the land needed for the scheme, for highway purposes. A CPO for highway 
purposes would be much more difficult if the current agreed route is progressed, as it is highly 
unlikely that highway rights could be acquired by CPO over the Welsh Water Bridge. This is 
because there would probably be an unwithdrawn objection from Welsh Water and 
consequently it would be subject to the “Certification Procedure”. This would involve not only 

19



the usual confirmation from the Secretary of State but also from the relevant Minister 
responsible for that particular statutory undertaker and he would only grant that consent if the 
land can firstly be replaced, and secondly without serious detriment to the carrying on of the 
undertaking. As the land in question involves a bridge, used specifically for the Welsh Water 
Undertaking, it is highly unlikely that the Council would be able to satisfy this requirement. It 
should also be noted that such consent from the Minister would be applied for after the normal 
public inquiry into objections, so there would inevitably be further delay. 

16 Both the Current Approved Route and the Preferred Route are subject to Environmental 
Impact Assessment due to the designation of the River Wye and require an Environmental 
Statement to support any planning application.  The Preferred Route requires less site 
clearance and riverbank works minimising the impact of the scheme.  The current agreed 
route may be at risk during the planning process as a lower impact alternative exists.  

Community Impact 

17 The provision of the Preferred Route will promote increased use as a commuter route to the 
Industrial estate reducing traffic travelling through the town centre and on the congested A49.  
This commuter use and increased leisure use will promote health and wellbeing within the 
community and contribute to a modal shift from car use. 

18 The public perception of the Preferred Route is likely to be one of a high quality route which 
will enhance the status of the route. It is a more direct and coherent route which are key 
consideration when planning cycle routes. 

20



Financial Implications 

19 The capital bid for the current agreed route is: 

2008/09 £22,819 

2009/10 £180,000 

2010/11 £500,000 

2011/12 £697,181 

2012/13 £350,650 

Total  £1,750,650 

20 Included within this budget is £350,000 allocated by Sustrans through the Big Lottery Fund 
which will be reclaimed on completion of the scheme.  The total scheme budget is therefore 
£1,750,650 with Herefordshire Council’s liability £1,400,650. 

21 The cost estimate has been refined and the current estimate for the current agreed route is 
£2,968,740.  However, additional funding is being sought through Sustrans ‘Links to School’ 
for Section 4 (Sink Green to Holme Lacy) amounting to £756,240.  Herefordshire Council’s 
liability is therefore £1,862,500 (an additional £461,850).  This increase has occurred due to 
increased costs associated with constructing the ramps at the Welsh Water bridge and the 
capital bid not including amounts for design and supervision fees.   

22 The cost estimate for the Preferred Route is £3,350,740 and, taking account of the ‘Links to 
School’ funding opportunity, Herefordshire Councils liability would be £2,244,500 (an 
additional £843,850). 

23 A more detailed breakdown of the cost estimates for the scheme route options can be seen in 
the Route Appraisal Table in Appendix B. 

24 It is recommended that the additional cost of this scheme is funded from Growth Point budget 
and if necessary Local Transport Plan capital budgets. In October 2006 Herefordshire was 
awarded Growth Point status following the Government’s invitation to submit expressions of 
interest from local authorities as part of its commitment to increasing housing supply. In 
December 2008an award for 2009/10 and 2010/11 was announced. In summary the award 
was: 

Growth Fund 
Announcement 
10th December 
2008 

Revenue Capital 

2009/10 £171,424 £1,460,000 

2010/11 £171,034 0 

Total £342,458 £1,460,000 

 

25. The capital allocation of £1.46 million was specifically in response to the bid for expenditure to 
implement the Park and Ride (North) site however the Grant Award is not ringfenced. Following 
a recent review of the Business Case for Park & Ride which recommends the provision of 
smaller car parks than intended when the grant point application was made which means it is 
possible to divert this funding to deliver Connect 2. The Connect2 project fits with the theme of 

21



sustainable transport infrastructure which enables growth to take place whilst mitigating 
impacts. 

Legal Implications 

26. Health and Safety legislation, and regulations place duties upon parties in the construction 
industry to minimise, so far as is reasonably practicable, the risks to workers and the public 
through the construction, use, maintenance and decommissioning of the structures designed.  

27 Legislation requires the specific protection of selected species and an obligation to minimise 
any impacts upon the environment from any construction works. 

28. As detailed in Paragraph 15 above, as regards a CPO. 

22



Risk Management 

Risk Associated with the Current Approved 
Route 

Mitigation and Management as a result of the 
adoption of the Preferred Route 

Risk to users of the route due to conflict with 
HGVs on Outfall Works Road. 

Reduced risk by adoption of Preferred Route 
along Eign Road. 

Route subject to annual flooding causing damage 
and discouraging its use. 

Reduce flood risk by adoption of Preferred Route 
which has a higher level alignment. 

Access to both sides of the river is problematic 
requiring possessions over the railway line and 
costly diversion of overhead electricity cables. 

Avoid risk by adoption of Preferred Route which 
has good site access throughout and no major 
conflicts with statutory undertakers apparatus. 

Extensive site clearance required along the 
riverbank on the approaches to the Welsh Water 
structure could have unacceptable environmental 
impact. 

Reduce risk by adoption of Preferred Route to 
minimise works to the riverbank.  Residual risks 
associated with the visual impact of a new 
structure on adjacent residential properties. 

Risk of disruption of Construction works due to 
inundation of site during flooding. 

Reduced complexity and programme associated 
with construction will reduce risk of inundation. 

The existing Welsh Water bridge is a post-
tensioned structure requiring costly inspection 
and design checks which may result in the bridge 
not being usable. 

Avoid risk by adoption of Preferred Route 
requiring a new bridge structure. 

 

Future use of the Welsh Water structure at risk 
due to withdrawn permission for use following any 
security concerns and reduced bridge lifespan.   

Avoid risk by the adoption of Preferred Route 
requiring a new bridge structure within the total 
control of the Council. 

Risk to route use due to breakdown in landowner 
negotiations and no potential to use CPO powers 
to adopt route as a highway. 

Reduce risk by adoption of Preferred Route due 
to fewer landowners.  Potential to use CPO 
powers and adopt the route as a highway.   

Risk to use of the railway underpass from 
rejection of scheme or a three month termination 
clause in the agreement to allow the structure to 
be filled in at any time. 

Avoid risk by adoption of Preferred Route 
requiring a no crossing of the railway. 

 

 

23



Consultees 

§ Connect2 Steering Group 
§ Welsh Water 
§ Environment Agency 
§ Network Rail 
§ Central Networks 
§ Affected Landowners 
§ Affected Parish Councils & County Councillors 
§ Respective Herefordshire Council departments via the Major Projects Board and internal 

project team. 

Note: Most consultation has been associated with the current agreed Route.  Limited consultation has 
taken place on the Preferred Route due to the sensitive nature of land negotiations.  However, 
preliminary discussions have been made with one of the affected landowners, Herefordshire Council 
Planning Authority and the Environment Agency. 

Appendices 

Appendix A  Appendix A of this report is exempt by virtue of paragraph 3 of the Access to 
Information Procedure Rules set out in the Constitution pursuant to Schedule 12A Local 
Government Act 1972, as amended. 

  Drawing Number 551369/I/014 

  Drawing Number 551369/I/015  Drawing Number 551369/I/016 

Appendix B   Route Appraisal Table 

Background Papers 

Amey Consulting Bridge Options Report – June 2009Connect2 Feasibility Report - 2007 

 

24



A
p

p
en

d
ix

 B
 –

 R
o

u
te

 A
p

p
ra

is
al

 T
ab

le

 
20

07
 F

ea
si

b
ili

ty
 R

ep
o

rt
 

S
ch

em
e 

T
er

m
in

at
io

n
 

H
o

lm
e 

L
ac

y 
R

o
ad

 Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

ts
 

W
el

sh
 W

at
er

 B
ri

d
g

e 
– 

C
u

rr
en

t 
A

p
p

ro
ve

d
 R

o
u

te
 

N
ew

 B
ri

d
g

e 
– 

P
re

fe
rr

ed
 R

o
u

te
 

S
ec

tio
n1

 
C

ity
 L

in
k 

N
ot

 in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 r

ep
or

t 
 

13
,0

00
 

17
,5

00
 

17
,5

00
 

F
oo

tp
at

h 
H

E
R

18
 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 
72

,0
00

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 

H
ol

m
e 

La
cy

 R
d 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 
N

/A
 

 
35

0,
00

0 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

(n
om

in
al

 fi
gu

re
 a

s 
de

si
gn

 n
ot

 
co

m
m

en
ce

d 
or

 c
os

te
d)

 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

O
ut

fa
ll 

W
or

ks
 R

d 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 

N
/A

 
 

N
/A

 
50

,0
00

 
N

/A
 

E
ig

n 
R

oa
d 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 
N

/A
 

 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
15

0,
00

0 

W
es

t/N
or

th
 R

iv
er

 
A

pp
ro

ac
h 

57
,8

00
N

/A
 

28
5,

00
0 

10
0,

00
0 

R
am

ps
 / 

R
iv

er
 B

rid
ge

 
50

0,
00

0 
 

N
/A

 
85

0,
00

0 
1,

30
0,

00
0 

E
as

t/S
ou

th
 R

iv
er

 
A

pp
ro

ac
h 

 / 
R

ai
lw

ay
 

U
nd

er
pa

ss
 

12
5,

50
0 

N
/A

 
20

6,
00

0 
80

,0
00

 

S
ec

tio
n 

2 

S
ec

tio
n 

2 
T

ot
al

 
75

5,
30

0 
 

35
0,

00
0 

1,
39

1,
00

0 
1,

63
0,

00
0 

S
ec

tio
n 

3 
R

ot
he

rw
as

 L
in

k 
38

4,
00

0 
 

13
2,

00
0 

13
2,

00
0 

13
2,

00
0 

S
ec

tio
n 

4 
H

ol
m

e 
La

cy
 L

in
k 

75
6,

24
0 

 
75

6,
24

0 
75

6,
24

0 
75

6,
24

0 

T
o

ta
l C

o
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
 C

o
st

 
1,

89
5,

54
0 

0 
1,

25
1,

24
0 

2,
29

6,
74

0 
2,

53
5,

74
0 

La
nd

 A
cq

ui
si

tio
n 

/ C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
N

ot
 in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 r
ep

or
t 

 
N

ot
 In

cl
ud

ed
 

£1
90

,0
00

 (
w

or
st

 c
as

e 
sc

en
ar

io
) 

£2
15

,0
00

 (
w

or
st

 c
as

e 
sc

en
ar

io
) 

C
on

su
lta

nt
s 

D
es

ig
n 

F
ee

s 
N

ot
 in

cl
ud

ed
 In

 r
ep

or
t  

 1
50

,0
00

 
S

pe
nd

 to
 D

at
e 

20
0,

00
0 

28
2,

00
0 

40
0,

00
0 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
S

up
er

vi
si

on
 F

ee
s 

N
ot

 in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 r

ep
or

t  
 1

00
,0

00
 

 
10

0,
00

0 
20

0,
00

0 
20

0,
00

0 

T
o

ta
l S

ch
em

e 
C

o
st

 (
£)

 
2,

14
5,

54
0 

S
p

en
d

 t
o

 D
at

e 
1,

55
1,

24
0 

2,
96

8,
74

0 
3,

35
0,

74
0 

E
xt

er
n

al
 F

u
n

d
in

g
 A

va
ila

b
le

 
35

0,
00

0 
0 

0 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
35

0,
00

0 
(C

o
n

n
ec

t2
 -

 B
ig

 L
o

tt
er

y)
 

75
6,

24
0 

(S
u

st
ra

n
s 

- 
L

in
ks

 t
o

 S
ch

o
o

l)
 

35
0,

00
0 

(C
o

n
n

ec
t2

 -
 B

ig
 L

o
tt

er
y)

 

75
6,

24
0 

(S
u

st
ra

n
s 

- 
L

in
ks

 t
o

 S
ch

o
o

l)
 

H
er

ef
o

rd
sh

ir
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l L

ia
b

ili
ty

 
1,

79
5,

54
0 

S
p

en
d

 t
o

 D
at

e 
1,

55
1,

24
0 

1,
86

2,
50

0 
2,

24
4,

50
0 

C
u

rr
en

t 
C

ap
it

al
 A

llo
ca

ti
o

n
   

1,
40

0,
65

0 
1,

40
0,

65
0 

1,
40

0,
65

0 
1,

40
0,

65
0 

C
ap

it
al

 A
llo

ca
ti

o
n

 S
h

o
rt

fa
ll 

39
4,

89
0 

15
0,

59
0 

46
1,

85
0 

84
3,

85
0 

C
o

st
 P

ro
fi

le
**

 

20
08

/9
/1

0 

20
10

/1
1 

20
11

/1
2 

20
12

/1
3 

69
3,

55
0 

35
3,

55
0 

35
3,

55
0 

74
3,

55
0 

S
pe

nd
 to

 D
at

e 
20

0,
00

0 

90
0,

00
0 

28
2,

00
0 

90
5,

74
0 

1,
74

6,
22

5 

34
,7

75
 

20
0,

00
0 

1,
10

5,
74

0

2,
00

6,
75

0

38
,2

50
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e 

B
ri

d
g

e 
O

p
en

in
g

 
N

ot
 G

iv
en

 
N

ot
 A

pp
lic

ab
le

 
A

ug
us

t 2
01

0 
F

eb
ru

ar
y 

20
11

 
N

ov
em

be
r 

20
11

 

25



2

 
20

07
 F

ea
si

b
ili

ty
 R

ep
o

rt
 

S
ch

em
e 

T
er

m
in

at
io

n
 

H
o

lm
e 

L
ac

y 
R

o
ad

 Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

ts
 

W
el

sh
 W

at
er

 B
ri

d
g

e 
– 

C
u

rr
en

t 
A

p
p

ro
ve

d
 R

o
u

te
 

N
ew

 B
ri

d
g

e 
– 

P
re

fe
rr

ed
 R

o
u

te
 

 
D

es
ig

n
 / 

C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 
A

ss
um

es
 th

e 
ro

ut
e 

av
oi

ds
 H

G
V

s 
on

 o
ut

fa
ll 

w
or

ks
 r

oa
d 

by
 u

si
ng

 
an

d 
up

gr
ad

in
g 

fo
ot

pa
th

 H
E

R
18

. 

H
ig

hl
ig

ht
s 

riv
er

si
de

 p
ro

te
ct

io
n 

w
or

ks
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

 o
r 

ad
di

tio
na

l 
la

nd
 fr

om
 W

el
sh

 W
at

er
.  

 

In
cl

ud
es

 p
ar

ap
et

 u
pg

ra
de

 
re

qu
ire

m
en

t. 

In
cl

ud
es

 o
ve

rh
ea

d 
el

ec
tr

ic
ity

 
ca

bl
e 

di
ve

rs
io

n.
 

N
ot

 A
pp

lic
ab

le
 

M
aj

or
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

to
 

H
ol

m
e 

La
cy

 R
oa

d 
to

 fo
cu

s 
up

on
 th

e 
na

rr
ow

 r
oa

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
ra

ilw
ay

 
br

id
ge

. 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 th
e 

sh
ar

ed
 

fo
ot

w
ay

 c
yc

le
w

ay
. 

Ju
nc

tio
n 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 to
 r

ed
uc

e 
cr

os
si

ng
 d

is
ta

nc
es

. 

(S
ee

 H
ol

m
e 

La
cy

 R
oa

d 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t 
S

ch
em

e 
S

co
pi

ng
 R

ep
or

t f
ro

m
 J

un
e 

20
07

 p
re

pa
re

d 
by

 A
m

ey
) 

 

E
xi

st
in

g 
br

id
ge

 w
ill

 r
eq

ui
re

 c
os

tly
 in

sp
ec

tio
n 

an
d 

de
si

gn
 c

he
ck

 
pr

oc
es

s 
w

hi
ch

 s
til

l h
as

 th
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l t
o 

pr
ec

lu
de

 it
s 

us
e.

   
In

sp
ec

tio
n 

w
or

ks
 m

ay
 r

eq
ui

re
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t t
em

po
ra

ry
 w

or
ks

 w
ith

 
ef

fe
ct

s 
no

t y
et

 q
ua

nt
ifi

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t c
os

ts
 a

nd
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e.
 

La
nd

 a
cc

es
s 

on
 b

ot
h 

si
de

s 
of

 th
e 

riv
er

 d
iff

ic
ul

t t
o 

ac
hi

ev
e 

du
e 

to
 

th
e 

ra
ilw

ay
 li

ne
, r

iv
er

, h
ou

si
ng

 a
nd

 W
el

sh
 W

at
er

 p
la

nt
. 

C
os

tly
 d

iv
er

si
on

 (
ap

pr
ox

im
at

el
y 

£7
0,

00
0 

to
 £

80
,0

00
) 

of
 

ov
er

he
ad

 e
le

ct
ric

ity
 c

ab
le

. 

R
ai

lw
ay

 p
os

se
ss

io
ns

 a
re

 li
ke

ly
 to

 b
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 fa

ci
lit

at
e 

pl
an

t 
an

d 
m

at
er

ia
ls

 d
el

iv
er

ie
s 

ea
st

 o
f t

he
 r

iv
er

. 

B
rid

ge
 d

es
ig

ne
d 

by
 te

nd
er

ed
 d

el
iv

er
y 

co
ns

or
tiu

m
. 

La
nd

 a
cc

es
s 

go
od

 to
 b

ot
h 

si
de

s 
of

 th
e 

riv
er

 a
ss

um
in

g 
la

nd
ow

ne
r 

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e.

 

M
in

im
al

 / 
N

o 
S

ta
tu

to
ry

 U
nd

er
ta

ke
rs

 d
iv

er
si

on
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

 (
lo

ca
l 

su
pp

lie
s 

on
 E

ig
n 

R
oa

d 
m

ay
 b

e 
ef

fe
ct

ed
).

  N
o 

ne
ed

 to
 u

nd
er

ta
ke

 
co

st
ly

 o
ve

rh
ea

d 
el

ec
tr

ic
ity

 c
ab

le
 d

iv
er

si
on

. 

 
E

n
vi

ro
n

m
en

ta
l 

S
ta

te
s 

th
at

 th
e 

re
us

e 
of

 th
e 

W
el

sh
 W

at
er

 b
rid

ge
 h

as
 a

 
re

du
ce

d 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l i

m
pa

ct
 

th
an

 a
 n

ew
 b

rid
ge

. 

T
hi

s 
is

 n
ow

 k
no

w
n 

no
 lo

ng
er

 to
 

be
 th

e 
ca

se
. 

N
ot

 A
pp

lic
ab

le
 

M
in

im
al

 E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l I
m

pa
ct

 fo
r 

H
ol

m
e 

La
cy

 R
oa

d 
S

ec
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

ro
ut

e.
M

aj
or

 S
ite

 C
le

ar
an

ce
 a

nd
 r

em
ov

al
 o

f m
at

ur
e 

tr
ee

s.
 

S
ho

rt
 te

rm
 im

pa
ct

 o
n 

B
at

 fo
ra

gi
ng

 c
or

rid
or

 a
nd

 r
oo

st
in

g 
si

te
s.

 

E
xt

en
si

ve
 w

or
ks

 a
dj

ac
en

t t
o 

lo
ng

 le
ng

th
 o

f R
iv

er
 W

ye
 w

hi
ch

 h
as

 
S

S
S

I d
es

ig
na

tio
n 

an
d 

E
ur

op
ea

n 
S

A
C

 d
es

ig
na

tio
n.

 

K
no

w
n 

ba
dg

er
 s

et
t t

o 
be

 c
lo

se
d.

 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t r
eq

ui
rin

g 
a 

fu
ll 

E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l S
ta

te
m

en
t f

or
 

P
la

nn
in

g.
 

E
xt

en
si

ve
 r

iv
er

ba
nk

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

t w
ith

in
 A

ct
iv

e 
F

lo
od

pl
ai

n.
 

Le
ss

 S
ite

 C
le

ar
an

ce
 b

ut
 s

til
l r

eq
ui

re
s 

re
m

ov
al

 o
f m

at
ur

e 
tr

ee
s.

 

S
ho

rt
 te

rm
 im

pa
ct

 o
f p

ot
en

tia
l b

at
 r

oo
st

in
g 

si
te

. 

M
uc

h 
Le

ss
 E

xt
en

si
ve

 w
or

ks
 a

dj
ac

en
t t

o 
R

iv
er

 W
ye

 w
hi

ch
 h

as
 

S
S

S
I d

es
ig

na
tio

n 
an

d 
E

ur
op

ea
n 

S
A

C
 d

es
ig

na
tio

n.
 

N
o 

kn
ow

n 
B

ad
ge

r 
A

ct
iv

ity
. 

P
ot

en
tia

l O
tte

r 
A

ct
iv

ity
. 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t r
eq

ui
rin

g 
a 

fu
ll 

E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l S
ta

te
m

en
t f

or
 

P
la

nn
in

g 
w

ith
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

t f
or

 im
pa

ct
 o

n 
vi

su
al

 
am

en
ity

. 

 
H

ea
lt

h
 a

n
d

 S
af

et
y 

C
on

ce
rn

s 
ra

is
ed

 a
bo

ut
 H

G
V

s 
on

 
O

ut
fa

ll 
W

or
ks

 R
oa

d 
an

d 
ar

ou
nd

 
th

e 
se

w
ag

e 
pl

an
t e

nt
ra

nc
e.

 

O
ve

rh
ea

d 
C

ab
le

 p
ro

xi
m

ity
 

hi
gh

lig
ht

ed
. 

N
ot

 A
pp

lic
ab

le
 

W
or

ki
ng

 a
dj

ac
en

t t
o 

liv
e 

ca
rr

ia
ge

w
ay

. 
15

 p
ie

r 
fo

un
da

tio
n 

ex
ca

va
tio

ns
 d

ire
ct

ly
 a

dj
ac

en
t t

o 
riv

er
.  

N
ew

 p
ar

ap
et

 fi
xi

ng
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

 a
bo

ve
 th

e 
riv

er
.  

R
is

k 
to

 th
e 

pu
bl

ic
/ E

xc
ep

tio
ns

 to
 S

af
et

y 
A

ud
it 

w
he

re
 n

o 
fo

ot
pa

th
 

ex
is

ts
 a

nd
 a

ls
o 

al
on

g 
O

ut
fa

ll 
W

or
ks

 R
oa

d.
 

2 
pi

er
 fo

un
da

tio
n 

ex
ca

va
tio

ns
 d

ire
ct

ly
 a

dj
ac

en
t t

o 
riv

er
. 

P
ar

ap
et

s 
pr

ef
ab

ric
at

ed
 o

n 
su

pe
rs

tr
uc

tu
re

 to
 m

in
im

is
e 

w
or

ki
ng

 
at

 h
ei

gh
t. 

R
ed

uc
ed

 r
is

ks
 o

f O
ut

fa
ll 

W
or

ks
 R

oa
d,

 a
lth

ou
gh

 s
om

e 
ris

k 
on

 
E

ig
n 

R
oa

d.
 

 
P

la
n

n
in

g
  

N
o 

C
om

m
en

ts
 

N
ot

 A
pp

lic
ab

le
 

R
eq

ui
re

s 
fo

rm
al

 s
cr

ee
ni

ng
 o

pi
ni

on
 b

ut
 

m
ay

 n
ot

 r
eq

ui
re

 fo
rm

al
 p

la
nn

in
g 

pe
rm

is
si

on
. 

R
is

k 
to

 p
la

nn
in

g 
du

e 
to

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l i
m

pa
ct

 o
f s

ch
em

e.
 

A
do

pt
io

n 
of

 th
e 

ro
ut

e 
no

t p
os

si
bl

e.
 

R
is

ks
 to

 p
la

nn
in

g 
du

e 
to

 p
os

si
bl

e 
ob

je
ct

io
n 

fr
om

 li
m

ite
d 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 r

es
id

en
tia

l p
ro

pe
rt

ie
s 

ad
ja

ce
nt

 to
 b

rid
ge

 s
ite

. 

A
do

pt
io

n 
of

 r
ou

te
 a

s 
a 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ig
hw

ay
 a

 s
tr

on
g 

po
ss

ib
ili

ty
. 

 
L

an
d

 
W

el
sh

 W
at

er
 c

on
ce

rn
s 

ab
ou

t 
se

cu
rit

y 
hi

gh
lig

ht
ed

. 
N

ot
 A

pp
lic

ab
le

 
N

o 
ad

di
tio

na
l l

an
d 

re
qu

ire
d 

fo
r 

th
e 

H
ol

m
e 

La
cy

 R
oa

d 
se

ct
io

n 
of

 th
e 

ro
ut

e.
 

S
ix

 S
ep

ar
at

e 
La

nd
ow

ne
rs

 r
eq

ui
rin

g 
se

pa
ra

te
 a

gr
ee

m
en

ts
 fo

r 
th

e 
ro

ut
e 

fr
om

 th
e 

C
ity

 C
en

tr
e 

to
 S

in
k 

G
re

en
. 

A
ll 

lia
is

on
 h

as
 c

om
m

en
ce

d.
 

T
hr

ee
 la

nd
ow

ne
rs

 e
ffe

ct
ed

 r
eq

ui
rin

g 
ag

re
em

en
ts

 fo
r 

th
e 

ro
ut

e 
fr

om
 th

e 
C

ity
 C

en
tr

e 
to

 S
in

k 
G

re
en

. 

Li
m

ite
d 

lia
is

on
 r

eg
ar

di
ng

 th
is

 o
pt

io
n 

to
 d

at
e 

w
ith

 o
ne

 la
nd

ow
ne

r 
in

di
ca

tin
g 

so
m

e 
su

pp
or

t. 

 
P

u
b

lic
 E

n
g

ag
em

en
t 

N
o 

C
om

m
en

ts
 

M
aj

or
 a

dv
er

se
 r

ea
ct

io
n 

lik
el

y 
th

ro
ug

h 
st

ee
rin

g 
gr

ou
p 

an
d 

w
id

er
 

pu
bl

ic
.  

 

A
dv

er
se

 r
ea

ct
io

n 
lik

el
y 

th
ro

ug
h 

st
ee

rin
g 

gr
ou

p 
an

d 
w

id
er

 p
ub

lic
.  

 

Li
ttl

e 
am

en
ity

 b
en

ef
it 

pr
ov

id
ed

 fo
r 

le
is

ur
e 

us
er

s.
 

Lo
ss

 o
f C

on
ne

ct
2 

br
an

di
ng

 a
nd

 
su

pp
or

t f
ro

m
 S

us
tr

an
s 

/ B
ig

 L
ot

te
ry

. 

C
ur

re
nt

ly
 d

es
ig

ns
 n

ot
 w

el
l r

ec
ei

ve
d 

by
 th

e 
st

ee
rin

g 
gr

ou
p.

 

S
om

e 
am

en
ity

 b
en

ef
it 

fo
r 

le
is

ur
e 

us
er

s.
 

C
on

tin
ue

d 
C

on
ne

ct
2 

br
an

di
ng

 a
nd

 s
up

po
rt

 fr
om

 S
us

tr
an

s 
an

d 
B

ig
 L

ot
te

ry
. 

R
ed

uc
ed

 jo
ur

ne
y 

tim
e 

fo
r 

cy
cl

is
ts

 N
or

th
 o

f t
he

 R
iv

er
 a

nd
 fo

r 
pe

de
st

ria
ns

 a
nd

 c
yc

lis
ts

 to
 th

e 
ea

st
 o

f t
he

 c
ity

 c
en

tr
e 

ac
ce

ss
in

g 
th

e 
es

ta
te

, H
ol

m
e 

La
cy

 a
nd

 c
ou

nt
ry

si
de

 a
m

en
iti

es
.  

  

G
re

at
er

 s
up

po
rt

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
fr

om
 s

te
er

in
g 

gr
ou

p.
 

W
id

er
 p

ub
lic

 s
up

po
rt

 a
ls

o 
ex

pe
ct

ed
. 

H
ig

h 
am

en
ity

 b
en

ef
it 

fo
r 

le
is

ur
e 

us
er

s.
  

C
on

tin
ue

d 
C

on
ne

ct
2 

br
an

di
ng

 a
nd

 s
up

po
rt

 fr
om

 S
us

tr
an

s 
an

d 
B

ig
 L

ot
te

ry
. 

B
es

t d
es

ire
 li

ne
 w

ith
 g

re
at

es
t r

ed
uc

tio
n 

in
 jo

ur
ne

y 
tim

e 
fo

r 
cy

cl
is

ts
 N

or
th

 o
f t

he
 R

iv
er

 a
nd

 fo
r 

pe
de

st
ria

ns
 a

nd
 c

yc
lis

ts
 to

 
th

e 
ea

st
 o

f t
he

 c
ity

 c
en

tr
e 

ac
ce

ss
in

g 
th

e 
es

ta
te

, H
ol

m
e 

La
cy

 
an

d 
co

un
tr

ys
id

e 
am

en
iti

es
.  

M
os

t i
m

pr
ov

em
en

t t
o 

ro
ut

e 
sa

fe
ty

, 
co

m
fo

rt
, a

m
en

ity
 a

nd
 th

er
ef

or
e 

gr
ea

te
st

 li
ke

ly
 u

se
 w

ith
 

m
ax

im
um

 s
hi

ft 
fr

om
 c

ar
 u

se
.  

 
M

ai
n

te
n

an
ce

 / 
W

h
o

le
 

lif
e 

 
N

o 
C

om
m

en
ts

 
N

ot
 A

pp
lic

ab
le

 
If 

si
gn

al
is

ed
 n

ar
ro

w
in

g 
is

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
at

 
th

e 
ra

ilw
ay

 b
rid

ge
 th

en
 th

er
e 

w
ill

 b
e 

an
 

on
go

in
g 

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 c
os

t  

S
tr

uc
tu

re
 fr

om
 th

e 
19

70
s 

so
 p

ot
en

tia
lly

 s
ho

rt
er

 r
es

id
ua

l l
ife

 
w

hi
ch

 c
an

no
t b

e 
de

te
rm

in
ed

 b
ef

or
e 

in
sp

ec
tio

ns
 a

re
 c

om
pl

et
e.

 

O
ng

oi
ng

 in
sp

ec
tio

n 
an

d 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 c

os
t s

im
ila

r 
fo

r 
al

l 
op

tio
ns

. 

C
ur

re
nt

 li
ai

so
n 

su
gg

es
ts

 th
at

 th
e 

ag
re

em
en

t f
or

 th
e 

us
e 

of
 th

e 
br

id
ge

 c
ou

ld
 b

e 
te

rm
in

at
ed

 b
y 

W
el

sh
 W

at
er

 a
t a

ny
 ti

m
e.

 

N
ew

 b
rid

ge
 w

ith
 fu

ll 
de

si
gn

 li
fe

 (
12

5 
ye

ar
s)

 w
ho

lly
 o

w
ne

d 
an

d 
m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
by

 th
e 

co
un

ci
l. 

O
ng

oi
ng

 in
sp

ec
tio

n 
an

d 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 c

os
t s

im
ila

r 
fo

r 
al

l 
op

tio
ns

. 

26


	Agenda
	
	5 Council Vehicle Fleet
	6 Progress Report on Community Protection Team
	7 Connect 2 Greenway Route Options
	Connect 2 Ap1 Cabinet Member Report
	Connects 2 Appendix B Appraisal Table _2_A4


